
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

This l'vh:morandum of Agreement (MOA) constitutes all agreement between United Statc~ 
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), a component of the Department of IIumeland 
Security (DHS), and the City of Manassa ... a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia, acting through its Police Department. hereinafter referred to as the "Law Enforcement 
Agency" (LEA), pursuant to which ICE authorizes up to a maximum of seven (7) nominated. 
trained. and cet1i1ied LEA personnel 10 perform certain immigration enforcement functions as 
specifi\!d herein. It is the intent of the partil.!s that these dclcgat~d authorities v.-ill enable the 
LEA to identify and proces;') immigration violators in City of Manassas. ICE and J .E,\ p{)ints of 
contm:t fllr purposes of this ivlOA are idcntifi~d in App~ndix A. 

I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this MOA is to set forth the tenns and conditions pur~uant to which sclc~tcd LEA 
personnel (participating LEA personnel) will b(.! nomiuatetl, trained, and thereafter perforlJl 
celtain functions of an immigration oflicer within Prince William County. Nothing wlltainL'd 
herein shnll otherwise limit thejuri:;dictil11l :lnd powers nonnnIly pus<:l'sscJ hy particip:l!ing LEA 
persollIlel as members (If lh~ LEA. Ilowewr, the cxer.:isc of th.: immigrati0Il ~nh)r-':!!Ill..:nl 

authority granted under this MOl\. to partidpatillg LEA personnel :-;hall occur only a~ rrovidcd in 
this [I,·1UA. TIus IvlOA abo describes the complaint proceJures a\ ailable to members ()f till' 

public regarding inunigrntion enforcement m.:tions taken by paltieipating LEA persoJlllcl 
pursuant to this agreement. 

If. AUTHORlTY 

Section 287(g) of the Immigration and Nati~)nality Act (INA). also codified at S V.5.c. § 
1357(g), as amended by the Homeland Security Ad of2002. Public Law 107·276, authorizes the 
S~crct:1ry ofDHS, acting through the Assistant St:cretary of [CE, to cnttr into \\Titten :lgr..:ement~ 
with a ~tate or any political subdivision of a State so that quali tied personnd can pCrf~)f;ll ccrtalll 
fundions of an immigration nfficc·r. Thi~ 1"10:\ cnnstitlltc.:s sud) a written (l~rcemenl. 

III. POLICY 

This MOA sets forth the sc()pe of the immigration ofticcr functions that DIiS is authoriz.ing the 
p,1I1icipating LEA personnel to perform It sets liJrth \"ith <;pc.:(.;ificity the duralic·n of the 
authority conveyed and the specific linc.:s of authority, including the requirement that 
partidpating LEA personnel arc subject to ICE supervision \vhile performing jm1lligrati(l11~ 

related duties pursuant to this MOA. For the purP()S('~ or this ~'10:\, ICE officers will provide 
supervision for participdting LEA pl:r:wI1Jld ollly a!> to ill1lnign'ltiun enfon:t:lllent functions. Tht.: 
LEA retains supervision of all other :lSpCdS of the employment of and perfUrmaIKI.: ut" duties by 
partkipating LEA personnel. 
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IV. ASSleJNMENTS 

B\;fore participating LEA personnel receive authorization to perform immigration oflicer 
functions granted under this MOA, they must successfully complete mandatory four (4) week 
training, as described in Scction VIll, in the enforcement of Fedcral inunigration laws and 
policies HS provided by ICE instructors and thereafter pass examinations equivalent to those 
given to ICE officers. Ollly pnrticipating l.EA personnel who ar~ selected, trained, authorized, 
and sup~rvised. a<; set oul h~r~'in, have authority pursuant to this :'v10A to cor.ducl the 
inunigration officer functions enumerated in this I\IOA. 

Participating LEA persollllel performillg immigration-related dtltil'~ pur:-.uant to this MOA will 
be LEA ofticcrs assigned to the Special Problems / Criminal ,\liell Unit. ~()rthern Virginia Gang 
Task Force. and/or the Prince William-p,·1anassas Vic\! and Narcotics Task Force. Participating 
LEA personnel will he o:xer(:i.~ing their immigration-relakd authorities during the course of 
criminal investigations involving aliens encountered within the City of Manassas. Any 
combination of these officers or (Ithers may be assigned and/ol eo-Inc ated as task force ofli~'t:r$ 
to assist ICE agents with criminal inve.~tiglltiullS 

Th\; mission of thesc VariOllS LEA assiglUncnts arc summarized as follows: 

Special Problems/Criminal Alien Unit: The Manassas City P~)lice Department (MCPD) LE,\ 
persollnel assigned to this unit arc charged with the investig3tiotl and apprchension of criminal 
aliens who pose a significant threat to community safety and will perform as follows: 

1. Criminal Gang Participatiun - Work in suppurt \)f City of ;"1a:1a5Sa5 Poli..;e l)...:partm..:nt 
Gmlg Unit and Northern Virginia Regional Gang Task Force ill t~rgt~lin~ crilllinal gallg 
:lctivitiC!s. 

2. Carecr Criminals Initiative -Identify and investigate high-ns~: criminal aliens who have 
been released from prison and remain in the community. 

:1. 1llcgal Documcnt lvlills·- Tnvestigah.: and apprehend criminals invulving the manufacmre 
and s:lle of forged dOClllllt!nts. 

4. Drug Enforcement - Support klcnl and regi('llal drug ~'nforc~~!ll("nt units regardmg cases 
with a nexus to the City \)f iVbna:;:-;ns 

5 lluman Smuggling - Investigate human smuggling cases involving ilkgRI ali~J\:;. 

6. Other Serious Criminal Activities - 1nvesligate uther Sl'lIOUS crime as as~igll~d by the 
Chit,r of Polke. 
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V. DESIG~ATION OF AUTlIORIZED Fl"NCTlONS 

For the purposes of this MOA, pm1icipating LEA personnel wi II be authorized to perfonn the 
following functions pursuant to the stated authorities, subject to the limitations contained in this 
MOA: 

• The power and authority to interrogate any person believed to be an alien as to his right 
to be or remain in the United States (INA § 287(a)(I) and 8 C.P.R. § 287.5(u)( I)) and to 
process lor immigration violations those individuals who are convicted or State or 
Federal felony offenses; or offenses as found in Appendix D. 

• The power and authority to arrest without warmnt any alien entering or attempting to 
unla\\'ililly enter the United States, or any alien in the United States, if the otlicer has 
reason to believe the alien to be arrested is in the United States in violation of law and is 
likely to escape before a warrant can be obtained. INA § 287(a)(2) and 8 C.F.R. § 
287.5(c)( I ); 

• The power and authority to arrest without warrant for felonies which have been 
cOllU11itted and which are cognizable under any law of the United States regulating the 
admission, exclusion, expulsion, or removal of aliens, if there is reason to believe that the 
person so arrested has conunitted such felony and if there is likelihood of t!1e person 
escaping before a wan'ant can be obtained .. INA § 287(a)(4) and 8 C.F.R. § 287.5(c)(2). 
Notification of such arrest must be made to ICE within 24 hours; 

• The power and authority to serve warrants of arrest for immigration violations pursuant 
to 8 C.F.R. § 287.5(e)(3); . 

• The power and authority to administer oaths and to take and consider I!vidcnce (INA § 
287(b) and 8 C.F.R. § 287.5(a)(2». to complete required criminal alien processing. 
including fingerprinting, photographing, and interviewing of aliens, as ' .... eIl as the 
preparation of affidavits and the taking of sworn statements tor ICE supervisory review: 

• The power and authority to prepare charging documents (rNA § 239, 8 C.F.R. § 239.1: 
rNA § 238, 8 C.F.R § 238.1; 1NA § 24I(a)(5). 8 C.F.R § 241.8: INA § 235(b)(l), 8 
C.F.R. § 235.3) induding the prepamlion of a Notict! to Appear C~TA) application or 
other charging document, as appropriate. for the signature of an ICE officer tor aliens in 
categories established by ICE supervisors; 

• The power and authority to issue immigration detaincrs (8 C.F.R. § 287.7) and 1-213. 
Record of Dep0l1ablc!Tnadmissi ble AI ien, for processi ng. al iens in categories established 
by ICE supervisors: and 

• The power and authority to detain and transport (8 C.F.R. § 287.5(c)(6» arrested aliens to 
ICE-approved detention facilities. 
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Vl. DETENTION Al"D TRANSPORTATION ISSUES 

The LEA is expected to pursue to completion prosecution of the State or local charges that 
caused the individual to be taken into custody. ICE will assume custody of individuals who have 
been convicted of a State or local offense only after such individuals have concluded service of 
any sentence of incarceration. ICE will also assume custody of aliens with prior criminal 
convictions (UU\ when immigration detention is required by statute. The ICE Detention and 
Removal Ficld Omcer Director or his designee will assess on a case-by-case basis the 
appropriate removal vehicle to be empl()yed and/or whether to assume custody of il'dividuals 
that do not meet the above criteria based on special interests or other extenuating circt.mstances 
after processing by the LEA. The immigration laws provide ICE Detention and Removal 
Operations (ORO) with the discretion 10 manage limited ICE detention resources. and ICE Ficld 
OUice Directors may exercise this discretion, in appropriate cases, by declining to detain aliens 
whose detention is not mandated by Ft!deral statute. 

ICE currently has in place a separate MOA with the Prince William Regional Adult Dett!ntion Center 
(PW RADe) that provides for the detention and transportation of illegal aliens that may be arrested 
by the LEA. However, if at any time and tor any reason the PW RADC is no longer involved with 
providing detention and transport support to the LEA then the MOA between the LEA and ICE will 
need to be immediately revisited to address these urgcnt issues. IfPW RADC or the LEA is unable 
to providc transportation of illegal aliens as required above, ICE may exercise its option to terminate 
this MOA pursuant to Paragraph 20 of this MOA. 

If ICE dctemlines lhat it is neccssary, the LEA will providt: ICE. at no cost, with an otlil:C within 
the participating LEA facility for ICE supervisory employees to work. 

The parties understand that the LEA will not continlle to detain an alien after that alien is eligible 
for release from the LEA's custody in accordance with applicable law and LEA policy, except 
for a period of up to 48 hours, excluding Saturdays. Sundays. and any holiday, pursuant to an 
ICE detainer issued in accordance with 8 C.F.R. § 287.7. absent an IGSA in place as descrihed 
above. 

Upon completion of processing and .release trom the LEA's affiliated detention facilities of an 
individual who participating LEA personnel have dctclmined to be a removable alien. the alien 
will be transported by the LEA on the same day to an ICE designated office or facility, atier 
notification to and coordination with the ICE supervisory officer. so that no further dctention 
costs will he incurred by ICE. 

In addition. if ICE and the LEA detennine that it is necessary. the LEA will enter into an IGSA 
with ICE for transportation of all incarcerated aliens beyond what is required in this MOA. 
Pursuant to this transportation IOSA, for a reimbursable fee, the l.EA will transport all 
incarcerated aliens in its facilities, upon completion of their sentences. to a tacility OJ" location 
designated by ICE. 
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VB. NOMINATION OF PERSONNEL 

The City of ~\'lanac:;sas Police LkpaJ1ment will nominate candidates tor initial tranung and 
certification under this MOA. For each candidate, ICE may request any infonnation necessary 
for a background ch~ck to include but no be limited to submission of fingerprints and a personal 
history questioIUlairc to evaluate a candidate's suitability to participate in the enforcement of 
immigration authorities under this MOA. All candidutes must be United States citizens. All 
candidates must have at least two years of LEA work experience. All candidates must he 
approved by ICE and must be able to qualify for appropriate Federal security clearances and 
fowul eligible for access to sensitive information. 

The MCPD and ICE enter into this MOA in good faith and agree to abide by the tenns and 
conditions contained herein. The MCPD agrees to use due diligence to screen individuals 
nominated for training arid agree that individuals who successfully complete the training under 
this MOA will pertorm immigration officer functions authorized under 287(g) for a minimum of 
two C~) years. Any failure by the MCPD to fulfill this commitment wuJd jeopardize the h:rms of 
this MOA and ICE reserves the right to terminate this MOA, suspend participation in thl:! 187(g) 
training program, or take other appropriate action as necessary. 

Candidates working with the Task Force operations shall have knowledge of: and have enforced 
laws and regulations pertinent to their law enforcement activities and their jurisdiction. The 
applicant's work experience should consist of interviewing witnesses, interrogating subjects, 
providing constitutional rights warnings, obtaining statements and executing sem·ch and seilure 
warrants. An emphasis should be placed Oil officers who have planned, organized and conducted 
complex investigations relating to violatiolls of criminal and civil law. All tasks force candidates 
must be sworn/certified onicers, must possess arrest authority, and must be authorized to carry 
firearms. 

All candidates must be approved by ICE and must be able to qualify for appropriate federal 
security clearances. Should a candidate not be approved, a substitute candidate may be 
submitted if time permits such substitution to occur without delaying the start of training. Any 
future expansion in the number of panicipating LEA persOTUlcl or scheduling of additional 
training classes may be based on an oral agreement ur the parties, but will be subject to all the 
requirements of this MOA. 

VIll. TRAINING OF PERSONNEL 

ICE will provide participating LEA personnel with the mandatory four (4) week training tailored 
to the inunigration functions to be performed. 
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Training will include. among other things: (i) discussion of the t~nns anJ limitations of this 
MOA; (ii) the scope of immigration officer authority: (iii) relevant immigration law; (iv) the ICE 
Use of Force Policy; (v) Civil Rights laws; (vi) the U.S. Department of Justice "Guidance 
Regarding the Use Of Race By Federal Law Enforcement Agencies," dated June 2003; (vii) 
public outreach and complaint procedures; (viii) liability issues; (ix) cross-cultural issues; and (x) 
the obligation under federal law and the Vielma Convention on Consular Relations to make 
proper notification upon the arrest or detention of a toreign national. 

Approximately one ycm after the participating I,EA personnd arc trained and certified, ICE may 
provide additional updated training on relevant administrative, legal, and operational issues 
related to the perfomumcc of inulligration officer l\mclions. unless either party terminates this 
MOA pursuant to Section XX, below. Local training on relevant issues will be provided on an 
ongoing basis by ICE supervisors or a designated team leader. 

IX. CERTIFIC'A TION AND AliTHORIZATIOK 

The ICE Training Division will certify in writing to the ICE Special Agent in Charge in Virginia 
the names of those I,EA personnel who successthlly complete training and pass all required 
testing. Upon receipt of Training Division certitication. the ICE Special Agent in Charge in 
Virginia will provide the participating LEA persOIUlcl with a signed authorization to perform 
specified Ihnctions of an immigration officer for an initial period of one year from the date of the 
authorization. ICE will also provide a copy of the aUlhoriz.ltion to the LEA. The ICE 
supervisory officer, or designated team leader, will evaluate the activities of all personnel 
certified under this MOA. 

Authorization of participating LEA persolUlei to act pursuant to this MOA may be revoked at 
any time hy ICE or the LEA. Such revocation will require immediate notification to the other 
party to this MOA. The Chief of Police and the ICE Special Agent in Charge in Virginia will be 
responsible fur nutitication of the appropriate personnel in their respective agencies. The 
temlinalion of this MOA shall constitute revocation of all inunigration enforcement 
authorizations delegated hereunder. 

X. COSTS AND EXPENDITURES 

Participating I,EA persolUlel will carry out designated functions at the LEA's expense, including 
salaries and benefits, local transportation, and ofticial issue material. 

ICE will provide the instructors and training materials. The I,EA is responsible (or the salari\!s 
and benefits, including overtime, for all of its pcrsonncl being trained or perfonlling duties under 
this MOA, and for those persOlUlel performing the regular functions of the participating LEA 
persormel while they arc receiving training. ICE is responsible for the salaries and hellelits of all 
of its personnel, including instructors and supervisors. 
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If ICE detennines th.:! training provides a direct service for thl~ Goverrunent. and it is in the best 
interest of the Government, the Goverrunent may issue travel orders to selected candidates and 
reimburse travel and per diem expenses only. The LEA remains responsible for paying salaries 
and benefits of the selected candidates. 

Subject to the availability of funds, ICE agrees to be responsible for the purchase, installation, 
and maintenance of tcclmology (computer/IAFISlPhoto and similar hardware/software) 
necessary to support the investigative functions of participating LEA personnel at each LEA 
facility with an active 287(g) program. The use of this equipment is to be limited to the 
perfonnance of responsibilities authorized by this MOA under section 287(g) of the INA by 
participating LEA personnel. ICE also agrees to provide the necessClry tec1U1oJogical support and 
software updates for use by participating LEA personnel to accomplish the delegated functions. 
Such hardware. soflware. and other tecimology purchased or provided by leE. shall remain the 
propcrty of ICE and shall be retumed to ICE upon tenninatioll of this agreement, or when 
deemed necessary by the ICE Special Agent in Charge and/or the ICE Field Office Director in 
Virginia. 

The LEA is responsible to provide all administrative supplies, i.~. paper, toner, pens, pencils and 
other similar items necessary for nomlal office operations. The I.EA is also responsible provide 
necessary security equipment, i.c. h,mdcuffs, leg restraints and flexi cuffs etc. 

it is understood by all parties that MCPD persoIUlel will utilize the ICE 287(g) office at the 
Prince William-Manassas Adult Detention Center to work. No hardware, software or other 
support equipmcnt will be installed at MCPD Headquarters. 

Xl. ICE SUPERVISION 

Immigration enforcement activities conducted by the participating 1,EA personnel will be 
supervised and directed by ICE supervisory oftlcers or the designated learn leader of the MCPD 
Special Problems/Criminal Alien Unit. Participating LEA personnel are not auihorized to 
perfonn immigration ofticer functions, except when working under the supervision of an ICE 
officer. or when acting pursuant to the guidance provided by an ICE agent. Participating LEA 
personnel shall give timely notice to the ICE supervisory officer within 24 hours of any detainer 
issued under the authorities set forth in this MOA. The actions of participating LEA personnel 
will be reviewed by ICE supervisory officers on an ongoing basis to ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the immigration laws and procedures and to assess the need for individual 
additional training or guidance. 

For purposes of this MOA, ICE officers will provide supervision of participating LEA personnel 
only as to immigration entorcement functions. The LEA retains supervision of all other aspecL<) 
of the employment of and perfonnance of duties by participating I.EA personnel. 
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In the absence of a written agreement to the contrary. the policies and procedures to be utilized 
by the participating LEA personnel in exercising these authorities shall be DHS and ICE policies 
and procedures. including the ICE Usc of Force Policy. However, when engaged in immigration 
enforcement activities. no participating LEA personnel \\ ill be expected or required to ,·iolate or 
otherwise fail to maintain the LE:\'s rliles. standards, or policies. or be required to fail to abide 
hy restrictions or limitations as may otherwise he imposed by law. 

If a contlict arises between an order or dil·~ctioll of an ICE supervisory officer or a DBS or ICE 
policy and the LEA's rules, standards. or policies. the conflict shall be promptly reported to the 
ICE Special Agent in Charge in Virginia. or designees. and the LEA, or designee, when 
circumstances safely allow the concern to he raised. The ICE Special Agent in Charge ill 
Virginia and the Chief of Police tor the City of Manassas Police Department shall attempt to 
resolve the conflict. 

XII. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

The LEA will be responsible for tracking and maintaining accurate data and statistical 
inlormation for their 287(g) program. including any specific tracking data requested hy ICE. 
Upon ICE's request, such datu and information shall be providcJ to ICE for comparison and 
verification with ICE's own data and statistic .. 1 inic)rmation, as weli as for ICE's statistical 
reporting requirements and to assess the progress and success of the LEA's 287(g) program. 

Xlli. LIABILI ry AND RESPONSIBILITY 

If any participating LEA personnel are the subject of {I complaint of any sort that may result in 
that individual receiving employer discipline or hecoming the subject of a criminal investigation 
or civil lawsuit. the LEA shall, to the cxtent allowed by State law. immediately notify ICE of the 
existence and natl.1re of the complaint. The resolution of the complaint shall also be promptly 
reported to ICE. Complaints regarding tht! t!xercise of immigration enforcement authority by 
participating LEI\. persOlUlel shall be handled as described below. 

Except as otherwise noted in this MOA or allowed by Federal law, the LEA will be responsible 
and bear the costs of participating Lt:A personnel \ .... ith rt!gard to their property or personal 
expenses incun·cd by reason of death, injury. or incidents giving rise to liability. 

Participating LEA personnel will only be treated as Federal employees for purposes of the 
Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. §§ 2671-2680, and worker's compensation claims, 5 lJ.S.C. 
§ 8101 et seq., when performing a function as authorized by this MOA. 8 U.S.C. § 1357(g)(7). It 
is the unuerstmlding of the parties to this rvl0A that pm1iciputing LEA personnel will enjoy the 
same defenses and inununities available to ICE of/icers from personal liability arising from tort 
luv,;suits based on actions conducted in compliance with this MOA. 8 U.S.C. § 1357(g)(8). 
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Participating LEA pt:rsonnel named as dct~ndants in litigation arising from activities carried out 
under this MOA Illay request representation by the U.S. Dcpm1mcnt of Justice. Such requests 
must be made in writing directed to the Atlol1lcy General of the United States, and will be 
handled in coordination with the ICE Special Agent in Charge in Virginia. Requests for 
representation must be presented to the ICE Olliee of the Chief Counsel, 90] North Stuart Street, 
Suite 708, Arlington, Virginia 22203. Any request for representation and related correspondence 
must be clearly marked "Subject to Attomey-Client Privilegc:' The Office of the Chief Counsel 
will fOM'ard the individual's request, togctJlcr with a mcmorandum outlining the factual basis 
underlying the cvent(s) at issue in the lawsuit. to the TCE Office of the Principal Lcgal Advisor. 
which will forward the request. the factual memorandum, and an advisory statement opining 
whether such rl!prcsentation would be in the interest uf the United States. to the Director of tht: 
Constitutional and Specialized Torts Staff. Civil Division, Department of Justice. ICE will not 
be liable for detending or indemnifying acts of intentional misconduct on the part of participating 
LEA persOIUlel. 

The LEA agrees to cooperate with any federal investigation relatcd to this MOA to the full 
extent of its available powers. It is understood that information provided by any LEA pcrsonnd 
under threat of disciplinary action in an administrative investigation cannot be used against that 
individual in subsequcnt criminal proceedings, consistent with ya11'ity v. New Jersey, 385 U.S. 
493 (1967). 

As the activities of participating LEA personnel under this MOA arc undertaken under federal 
authority, the participating LEA personnel will comply with Federal standards and guidelines 
relating to the Supreme Court's decision in Giglio v. United States, 405 U.S. 150 (197~), and its 
progeny. which relates to the disclosure of potential impeachment infonnation about possible 
witnesses or affi:mts in a criminal case or investigation. 

XIV. COMPLAfNT PROCEDURES 

The complaint J'c!porting and resolution procedure for allegations of misconduct by participating 
LEA personnel. with regard to activities undertaken under the authority of this MOA, is included 
at Appendix B. 

XV. CIVIL RIGHTS STA\lDARDS 

Participating LEA personnel who perfonn certain Federal immigration enforcement functions are 
bound by all federal civil rights statutes and regulations, including the U.S. Department of 
Justice "Guidance Regarding the lise of Race by Federal Law Enforcement Agencies" dated 
June 2003. 

Participating T.EA personnel will provide an opportunity for subjects with limited English 
language proticiency (0 request an interpreter. Qualified foreign language interpreters will be 
provided by the LEA as needed. 
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XVI. STEERTNG COMMITTEE 

The ICE Special Agent in Charge in Virginia and the City of Manassas Chief of Police shall 
establish a steering committee that will meet periodically to review and assess the inunigration 
enforcement activities conducted by tht! pm1icipming LEA persolU1el and to ensure compliance 
with the temlS of this MOA. Tn.:: steering comminee will meet periodically ill the City of 
Manassas at locations to be agreed upon by the panics. or via teleconference. Steering 
cOlluninee pm1icipants will be supplied with s~cific information 011 case reviews. individual 
participants' evaluations, complaints tiled, media coverage, and, to the extent practicable, 
statistical information on increased immigration enforcement activity in the City of Manassas. 
An initial review meeting will be held no later than nine months after certification of the initial 
class of participating LEA personnel under Section IX. above. 

XVII. COMMUNITY OUTREACH 

The LEA may. at its discretion, engage in conununity outreach with individuals and 
organizations expressing an interest in this MOA. ICE may pru'ticipate in sllch outreach upon the 
LEA's request. 

XVIlI. RELA TfONS WITH THE NEWS yIEDIA 

The LEA may, at its discretion, communicate the substance of this agreement to organizations 
and groups expressing an interest in the law enJorccment activities (0 be engaged in undcr this 
MOl\. This MOA also describes the complaint procedures available to members of the public 
regarding actions taken by participating LEA personnel pursuant to this agreement. 

The LEA hereby agrees to coordinate with ICE regarding infonnation to be released to the media 
regarding actions taken under this MOA. All contact with the media involving investigations 
conducted under this MOA by Tr05 will be done pursuant to ICE policy. The points of contact 
tor ICE and the LEA for this purpose arc identified in Appendix C. 

The I.El\. hereby agrees to consult with ICE prior to rdeasing any information in response to any 
requests for information relating to, or cxchang~d under. this ~·tOA. The parties recognize that 
the LEA is subject to the requirements oCthe Virginia Freedom of Information Act. §2.2-3700. el 

seq., Virginia Code Ann. 

XIX. MODr~ICATION OF TIllS MOJ\ 

Moditications to this MOA must be proposed in writing and approved by the signatories. 
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XX. DURATION A!\lD TERMINATION OF THIS MUA 

This MOA will remain in effect from the date of signing until it is terminated by either party. 
Either party. upon written notice to the other party. may terminate the MOA at any time. A 
tenllination notice shall be delivered personally or by certified or registered mail and temlination 
shall take effect immediately upon receipt of such notice. 

Either party. upon wTinen or oral notiel: to the other party, may temporarily suspend activities 
under this MOA whl!n resource constraints or competing priorities necessitate. Notice of 
telmination or suspension by ICE shall be given 10 the Chief of Police. Notice of tennination or 
suspension by thc LEA shall be given tn the ICE Special Agent in Charge in Virginia. 

This MOA docs not. is not intcnded to, shall not be construed to, and may not be relied upon to 
create, any rights, substantive or procedural, enforceable at law by any person in any mattcr. civil 
or criminal. 

By signing this MOA. each party represents it is fully authorized to enter into this MOA, and 
accepts the temlS. responsibilities, obligations, and limitations of this MOA, and agrees to be 
bound thereto to the fullest extent allowed by law. 

Date: 3.L-/"'::'~-l-/"'::::o-,</,--__ _ 

~nn fuiWL~J ~ 
Assistant Secretary 
Illunigralion and Customs Enforcement 
Department of I lomcland Security 

I , 

Date: _---'-.;;:./;i':l~'_'~ ,~\~_. ____ _ 
~ r·/ 

/ I ~ .--;, /I!-(.· ,~ 
• .4'--" '-- ' ./ ~ .... ~ ... ......-

fuilli} :'Ski ruler 
Chief of Police 
City of Manassas, VA Police Department 
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APPf.l\IHX 8 

COMPLAINT PROCEDUHE 

This MOA is an agreement between L>HS/ICI:. and the City of ;Vltmassas Police Department, 
hereinafter referred to as the "Law Enforcement Agency" (LEA). pursuant to which selected 
LEA personnel are authorized to perform immigration enforcement duties in specific situations 
under Fl.!deral authority. As such, the training, supervision, and performance of participating 
LEA personnel pursuant to the MOA, as well as the protections for individuals' civil and 
constitutional rights, are IC) be monitort!d. Part of that monitoring will be accomplished through 
these complaint reporting and resolution procedures, which the parties to the MOA have agreed 
to follow. 

The MOA sets torth the process for designation, tTammg. and certification of certain LEA 
personnel to perfoml certain immigration enforcement functions spccitied herein. Complaints 
tiled against those personnel in the course of their non-inunigration duties will remain the 
domain of the LEA and be handled in aceordancc with the LEA' s Manual of Policy and 
Procedures, or equival~nt rules, regulations or procedures. 'I he LEA will also handle complaints 
tiled against personnel who may exercise immigration authority, but who arc not designated and 
certified under this MOA. The number and type of the latter complaints will be monitored by the 
Steering Committee established under Section XVI of the NI0A. 

In order to simplify the process for the public, complaints against participating LEA personnel 
relating to their immigration enforcement can be reported in a Jlumber of ways. The ICE 
Headquarters Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR) and the LEA's Administrative 
Investigations (;nit will coordinate complaint receipt and investigation. 

1 he ICF. OPR will forward complaints to the Department of Ilomcland Security's Oflicc of 
Inspector General (DHS 010) as appropriate for review, and ensure notification as necessary to 
the U.S. Department of Justice Civil Rights Division (DO) CRD). The ICE OPR will coordinate 
complaints related to particip3ting personnel with the LEA's Administrative Investigations Unit 
as detailed below. Should circumstances warrant investigation of a complaint by the DHS OIG 
or the DO.! CRD. this will not preclude the DHS OIG. DO] eRD, or ICE OPR from conducting 
tht! investigation in coordination with the LEA's Administrative Investigations Unit. when 
appropriatc. 

rhe ICE OPR will adhere to estahlished procedures relating to reporting and resolving 
allegations of employee misconduct, and the LEA's Administrative Investigations Unit will 
follow applicable LEA policies and procedures, personnel rules, state statutt!s, and collective 
bargaining agreement requirements. 
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I. Complaint Repurting Procedures 

Complaint reporting procedures shall be disseminated as appropriate by the LEA within facilities 
under its jurisdiction (ill English and other languages as appropriate) in ordl:!r to ensure thaI 
indi viduals are awarl:! 0 f tht.' availabil ity () f such proct!dures. 

ComplainLC; will be accepted from any source (e.g.: ICE, LEA, participating LEA personnel, 
inmates, and the public). 

Complaints can be reported to Federal authorities as follows: 

A. Telephunically to the ICE OPR at the Joillt Intake Center (Jle) 111 

Washington, D.C. at the toll-free number 1-877-~46-8253, or 

13. Telephunically to the Resident Agent in Charge of the ICE OPR office in ICF. 
OPR SAC OFFICE COVERING Virginia, or 

C. Via mail as follows: 

t;.s. Department of Homdund Security 
U.S. Immigration and Custums Enforcement 
OUice of Professional Responsibility 
415 I Street. l'\\V 
Room 3260 
Washington, D.C. 20536 

Complaints can also be referred to and accepted by any of the following LEA entities: 

A. The LEA's Administrative Investigations Unit 
tvlajor Donald M. McKinnon,.Ir. 
Deputy Chief of Police 
City of Manassas Police Departm~nt 
951 X Fairview Avenue 
Manassas, Virginia 20110 
(703) 257-8002 
dmckilmon@ci.manassas. va. us 

B. The supervisor of any participating LEA p~rsonnel 

1. Rl!view of Complaints 
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All complaillls (wrinen OJ' oral) reported to the LEA directly, \vhich involve activities connected 
to immigration enforcement activities authorized Wlder this MOA, will be reported to the ICE 
OPR. The ICE OPR will verify participating personnel status under the MOA with the 
assistance of the Special Agent in Chargc of the ICE Ortiee of Investigations in Virginia. 
Complaints received by ~Uly ICE entity will be reported directly to the ICE OPR as per existing 
ICE policies and procedures. 

In all instances, the ICE OPR, as appropriate. will make an initial dctennination regarding OIlS 
investigative jurisdiction and refer the complaint to the appropriate office for action as soon as 
possible, giwn the naturt: of the complaint. 

Complaints reported directly to the ICE OPR will be shared with the LEA's Administrative 
Investigations Unit when the complaint involves LEA personnel. Both oftkes will then 
coordinate appropriate investigative jurisdiction, which may include initiation of a joint 
investigation to resolve the issue(s). 

3. Complaint Resolution Procedures 

Upon receipt of any complaint, the ICE OPR will undertake a complete review of each complaint 
in accordance with existing ICF. allegation criteria and reporting requirements. As stated aboVl.!. 
the ICE OPR will adhere to existing ICE reporting requirements as they relate to the DHS OIG 
and/or the DOJ CRD. Complaints will be resolved using the existing procedures. supplemented 
as follows: 

A. RefclTal of Complaints to LEA' s Administrati ve Investigations Unit. 

The ICE OPR will refer complaints, as appropriate, involving LEA 
personnel to the LEA's Administrative Investigations Cnit i<')r 
resolution. The Chief of Police will inform ICE OPR of the disposition 
and resolution of any complaints referred by ICE OPR. 

B. Interim Action Pending Complaint H.csolution 

Whenever any participating J .EA personnel are under investigation and 
su~jcct to interrogation by the LEA for any reason that could lead to 
disciplinary action. demotion. or dismissaL the requirements of the City of 
Manassas Police Department shall be honored. If appropriate, an 
individual may be removed from participation in the activities covered 
under the MOA pending resolution of an inquiry. 

C. Time Parameters for Resolution of Complaints 

It is expected that any complaint received will be resolved within 90 days. 
However, this will depend upon the nature and complexity of the 
substance of the com plaint itself. 
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D. Notification of Resolution ora Complaint 

ICE OPR will coordinate with the LEA's Administrative Investigations 
Unit to ensure notification as appropriate to the subjcct(s) of a complaint 
regarding the resolution of the complaint. 
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APPENDIX C 

PURLlC INFORMATION POINTS OF CONTACT 

Pursuant to Section XVlJI of this MOA. the signatories agree to coordinate any release of 
information 10 the media regarding actions taken under this MOA. The points of contact for 
coordinating such activities are: 

For the LEA: 

Sergeant Timothy K. NeunulIUl 
City of Manassas Police Department 
9518 Fairview Avenue 
Manassas, Virginia 20110 
(703) 257-8017 
tncnmmm:dci.m;:lIlH%Us. va.lIs 

FO\'ICE: 

Public Affairs Ofticcr Richard Rocha 
Oflice of Public Affairs and Intcmal Communication 
U. S Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
425 1 Street. Suite 1239 
Washington, D. C. 20536 
202-616-8895 
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APPENDIX D 

OFFENSE 

Arson 
Assault Officers: 

Aggravated Assault 
Simple Assault 
Intimidation 

Bad Checks 
Bribery 
BurglarylBreaking & Entering 

Counterfeitingl Forgery 

Destructionl Damagel Vandalism 
of Property 

Disorderly Conduct 
Driving Under the Influence 
Drugl Narcotic Offenses 

Drug/Narcotic Violations 
Drug Equipment Violations 

Drunkenness 
Embezzlement 
Extortion/Blackmail 
Family Offenses 

Fraud Offenses: 
False Pretense/Swindle 
Confidence Game 

Credit Card/Automatic Teller 
Machine Fraud 

Impersonation 
Welfare Fraud 
Wire Fraud 

Gambling Offenses 
BettinglWagering 
Operating/Promoting/Assisting 

Gambling 
Gambling Equipment Violations 
Sports Tampering 

Homicide Offenses: 
Murder & Non-negligent 

Manslaughter 
Negligent Manslaughter 

Kidnapping/Abduction 
LarcenylTheft Offenses 

Pocket-picking 
Purse-snatching 
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Shoplifting 
Theft From Building 
Theft From Coin.Operated 

Machine or Oevice 
Theft From Motor Vehicle 
Theft of Motor Vehicle Parts 

or Accessories 
All Other Larceny 

Liquor Law Violations 
LOitering 
Motor Vehicle Theft 
Peeping Tom 
Pornography/Obscene Material 
Prostitution Offenses: 

Prostitution 
Assisting or Promoting 

Prostitution 
Robbery 
Sex Offenses, Forcible: 

Forcible Rape 
Forcible Sodomy 
Sexual Assault With An Object 
Forcible Fondling 

Sex Offenses, Non Forcible: 
Incest 
Statutory Rape 

Stolen Property Offenses 
Trespass of Real Property 
Weapon Law Violations 
All Other Offenses 
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